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ADVENTURERS OF PURSE AND PERSON

30. FRANCIS® GRAVES (Francis?, Thomas!), probably born in
Rappahannock County, hived most of his life in Essex where he is
mentioned, 8-9 Sept. 1709, as of South Farnham Parish when he
sold 125 acres in S5t. Ann's Parish,'® His will, 25 June 174618 Oct.
1748,151 named his wile Anne and children.

Issue: 8l. William4, of Caroline County, married
Dorothy ——;!15¢ 82. Clara%, married, before 1746, Capt. Aaron
Higginbotham, Sr., of Amherst county who left will 19 Sept. 1778-
3 Oct. 1785;153 83. Janet; 84. Anni; B5. Elizabetht; 86. Mary®.

31. RICHARD3 GRAVES (Francis?, Thomas!) had left Essex
County by 1714, at which time he probably was engaged in
coastwise trade for, about 1708, he had purchased one-half part-
nership in a sloop from Francis Shackleford.i# Presumably, he is
identical with the Richard Graves who was taxed for the first time
in Craven Precinct, N.C,, in 17155 and who in his will, 11 April
1730-S8ept. 1730,!% mentions Richard and Francis, sons of
“Thomas Graves my Brother in Virginia.” He represented Craven
Precinct in the North Carolina Assembly, 1726.t57 He married
Hannah (Kent) Smithwick Green, daughter of Thomas and Ann
Kent and widow of John Smithwick and Farnifold Green, who
survived him.158

Issue: 87. Thomas?, died about 1767, Craven Co., N.C., married
Sara Turner;!5* 88. Mary*, married, after 1730, Richard Nixon,
who represented Craven County in the North Carolina Assembly,
1742-45,160 and left will 5 March 1745/6—]June 1746.'¢!

32. THOMAS3 GRAVES (FrancisZ, Thomas!), born aboul 1684,
remained in Essex County and marned, about 1708, Elizabeth
Moody, born 1690, daughter of John and Mary Moody of Essex, 152
who relinquished her dower rights, 19 June 1739, in land deeded
by her husband.!® Thomas® died by 15 Feb. 1742/3 when John
Graves obtained adiministration on his estate.!69

150 Essex Co. Deeds & Wills 13, pp. 248 157 North Carolina Government, 1585

ADVENTURERS OF PURSE AND PERSON

Issue: 89. Johnt, administrator of Ihomas® and presumed o be
a son;'5 90, Richard?, named in the will of his uncle Richard3
Graves; 91. Francis?, also named in the will of his uncle Richard?

Graves.

163 The previous identification of this
Jobn Graves as the John, born 10 Dec.
1712, died 30 March 1747, who married,

June 1714, was questioned by Charles H.
Hamlin, loe. al., who concluded that John
Graves (1712-1747) was the son of 41.

50.

151 Essex Co. Will Bk. 8, pp. 90-91.

152 Essex Co. Deed Bk. 27, p. 136.

150 Amherst Co, Will Bk. 2, p. 254, W(1)
XXV, pp. 265-68.

154 Esgex Co. Order Bk, 17U8-14, pp.
608-09.

155 The North Carolina Genealogical Society
Journal, I, p. 55. In 1719 he was charged
with 1900 acres and with 1400 acres be-
longing to the orphans of Farnifold Green
(sbid., p. 59).

156 Secretary of Swte records, North
Carolina Archives, file $5 Wills,

1979 (Raleigh, 1981), p. 35.

158 Journatl of North Carolina Genealogy, X,
pp. 1379-83.

154 W) XV, p. 302,

160 Ngreh Carolina Government, 1585—
1979, p. 41.

161 . Bryan Grimes, Abrart of North
Caroling Wills (Raleigh, 1410), p. 267.

162 Essex Co. Will Bk. 6, 1735-43, pp.
[57-58, will of John Moody, U Dec.
1735-20 March 1738/49.

163 Essex Co. Deeds &c 21, pp. 42225,

164 Essex Co. Will Bk. 6, p. 418.
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22 Nov, 1732, Susanna Dicken, born 14 Johnt Graves and his wife Rebecka.

GRAY'!

*1. THOMAS! GRAY, “an ancient planter at or before the time
of Sir Thomas Dale," 1616, was living at James City, 1623/4,% and
was listed there in the muster, 1624/5, with his wile Margaret, son
William?, aged 3 years, and daugher Joane, aged 6 years. He
deposed 7 March 1653/4 that he was aged 60 years or thereabouts 4

On 12 Oct. 1626 Thomas! Gray appeared as a witness before the
General Court at Jamestown.? His first patent, 27 Aug. 1635, for
550 acres on the south side of James River, “over against James
Ciwy” and on Rolfe's and Cross creeks, included 100 acres as an
Ancient Planter and 50 acres each for the transportation of his (1)
wife Anis (Annis) Gray, his present wite Rebecca Gray and two sons
William? and Thomas?, and adjoined a plantation already in his
possession.® He added 400 acres of Grayes Creck by patent, 20 July
1639,7 and an adjoining 100 acres on 7 June 1642.% Another 400
acres he had patented was lost for tailure of planting and seating
and repatented by Samuel Abbott, 10 April 1644,% but both this
ract, by purchase from Abbou, and his July 1639 patent were
included in a new patent for 800 acres, 14 March 1652/3.10

Thomas! Gray was probably dead before 2 Nov. 165811 when
Francis? Gray transferred a patent to his brother Thomas2. On 11
May 1659 Luke Mizell testified in court that while he was servant to
Tho. Gray, Sr., deceased, he “did oftenr hear sd Gray and his wife
say that {Thomas] Gates had given 50 acres to their son Thomas

and daughter Jane ™12

! Benjarain €. Hoblizelaw, “Thomas
Gray, Ancient Planwr of Surrv County,
Virginia, and Descendans.” Historical
Southern Families, XV11 (Raltimore, 1972),
pp. H1-102; John Bennett Bodddic, Virgrrnia
Historical Genealugres (Redwood City, Calif.,
1954), pp. 309-13.

? Parent Bk, 1, p. 283

5 Houen, p. 176.

1 Surry Co. Deeds , Wills &c |, 1652-72,

p. 41

FAMCGC, p. L9,

6 Parent Bk. 1, pp. 283, 631 (reparent 26
May 1638).

7 ftnd., p. 669.

s {bd., p. 787.

9 Itnd., p. 950.

1 Patent Bk, 3, p. 158.

1 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills 8¢ 1, 1652-.72,
p. 121,
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24 Jan{ 1624/5 when his e *Margaret —— was listed in the
muster.! fied (3), by 11 Sept. 1626, Rebecca —— who
deposed before the General Court that “good wief Wright did tell
her this deponent That by one Token weh this deponent had in her
forehed she should burye her Husbande.”'® This prediction did
not come true since Thomas! Gray survived Rebecca and, by about
1645, married {#) —— by whom he had young children, the
orphans mentioned in a controversy about land with John Corker,
26 June 1662.16

Issue: (by 1) 2. JONE (Jane)?; 3. William?, born about 1622

named in his father’s 1635 patent, apparently died young; (by 3) 4.

Thomas2, sold 100 acres on Gray’s Creek called Hollowing Point to
Richard and Isabella Case, 3 Nov. 1667,'7 and about 80 acres on
Gray's Creek and Cross Creek to Thomas and Joane Cruse, 5 Nov.
1667,'8 both tracts apparently inherited from his father, and died

before | Jan. 1672/3 when Francis? Gray was appointed his admin-

istrator;!9 5. REBECCAZ; 6. FRANCIS?; (by 4) 7. WILLIAM?; 8.

L

JOHN?; 9. Thomas2, deposed, 2 July 1672, he was near 21 years of /

age,? left will, 16 april 16762 May 1676,2! making bequests to his
brother Francis’ three daughters and Francis' wife and leaving his
land to his brothers John and William.

2. JONE? (Jane) GRAY (Thomas!), born about 1618, married
John Hux who gave his age as 40 in a deposition, 7 Nov. 16562, and
as 46 in a deposition, 9 May 1659.22 He married (2) Mary and
died before 4 May 1668 when his widow appointed John Harlow,
whom she subsequently married, as her attorney.2%

Issue: [HUX] 10. MARY3; 11. William3, left will, 31 Oct. 16761
May 1677, giving his land w his nieces Susannah and Mary
Ironmonger.2
. 5. REBECCA2 GRAY (Thomasl), born probably 1628—30, mar-
ried Daniel Hutton. On 7 March 1653/4 Thomas! Gray deposed
that Daniel Hutton left all his estate 1o his wife Rebecca.?? She

12 ibid., p. 131, 20 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 2, 167 1-84,
13 Register, 5 Peter, Pauls Wharf, Lon. . 20
don, M5 5721/{, Guild Hall, Londun. 21 id., p. 113,
14 The name Margaret may have been 22 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills ke 1, 1652-72,
an error of the recorder of the muster. pp- 4, 151
15 MCGC, p. 111 2 jbed., p. 302,
16 Surry Go. Deeds, Wills &c |, 1652-72, 24 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 2, 1671-84,

p. 192, p. 122,
17 Ihid., p. 291, 25 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 1, 1652-72,
18 [ud., p. 292. p- 4.
19 Surry Co. Order Bk. 1671-91, p. 18.
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apparently died by 20 May 1655 when Arthur Jordan, as guardian
of Elizabeth Huuon, leased 136 acres that had belonged to Daniel
Hutton 10 Robert Stanton 6

Issue: [HUTTON] 12, Elizabeth?, as daughter of Daniel Hutton
received patent for 136 acres, 26 May 1654,27 married Nicholas
Perry and died without issue by 11 March 1671/2.%8

6. FRANCIS2 GRAY (Thomas!), born about 1630-35, married
Mary who was granted administration on his estate 6 May
16749.2% His widow married (2), by 6 July 1679, Owen Myrick.30

Issue: 13. joan3, léft a bequest in the will of Thomas Weeks,
1676;% 14. Mary3, on whose estate Owe yrick was ordered to
give an accounting, 3 July 1683,32 15, ((ﬂlﬁ‘tﬁ?er)-"; 16, WILLIAM3.

7. WILLIAM? GRAY (Thomas!), born probably about 1648-9,
was a justice of Surry County, sherifi 10 April 1700, and served as a
member of the House of Burgesses, 1710-12.% He married Eliza-
beth Jarrett, daughter of Richard Jarrett.® He owned 1750 acres
in Surry County, 1704. His will, 3 June 1719-18 Nov. 17193
named his sons William and Gilbert, daughters Mary Gray, Faith
Ruffin and Priscilla Gray, and several grandchildren.

Issue: 17. WILLIAMS3, 18. John3, left will, 23 June 1708-9 Nov.
1708, naming his father, sister Lydin and brothers Thomas and
Gilbere® 19, Thomas?, apparently died unmarried before his
father; 20. GILBERT3; 21. Mary3; 22. FAI'THS3; 23, Priscillad,
married Capt. Thomas Hill, on whose estate she returned an
inventory dated 15 Jan. 1736/7;% 24, Lydia3; 25. (DAUGHTER)3;
26. (DAUGHTER)S.

8. JOHN? GRAY (Thomas!) deposed 2 July 1672 that he was
aged about 21.38 With his brother William? as “joynt heirs of Thos.
Grey there Brother, Lately deceased,” he sold land wo Col. Thomas
Swann, 15 Nov. 1677% and, 26 Sept. 1678, they were jointly
granted the 800 acres originally patented by Thomas! Gray.+® He
rmarried Mary who married (2), by 3 March 1684/5, Robert

2 dhud., p. 77. 20%; Leonard, p. 66.
2 Patest Bk, 3, p. 26, This land tell 1 # Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &« 2, 167 1~84,
[6. William? Gray as “next cousin and herr 448 Holidaw, op. e, p. 95,

uf the said Eliza Hutton” (Surry Co. Deeds,
Wills & 3, 168487, p. 3).

28 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &0 2, 167 -84,
p- 8.

29 Surry Co. Order Bk, 167 |-41, b, 248,

30 fhuid . 284 ()ldtr Bk. 169]-E7T45, p.
244,

31 Surry Co. Deeds, Wllls & 2, |67 1-84,
p. 113

32 Surry Co. Order Bk, 1671-91. p. 406.

B Surry Co. Order Bk, 16Y1-1713, p.

45 Kurry LCo. Deeds, Wills &c 7, 1715-30,
p. 226,

36 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 5, 1694-
1704, . 403,

37 Surry Cao, Devcds, Wills &c 8, 1731138,
p. 703

38 Surry Co, Deeds, Wills &c 2, 167 {84,
p. 20,

M fhed , p. 145.

v Parent Bk. 6, p. 653.
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ADVENTURERS OF PURSE AND PERSON

Nicholson.#1 His will, 16 May 1683-3 July 1683,12 mentioned his
wife and daughter and left his land, if his daughter died, to “my
Cozen John Gray, Will Gray's son.”

Issue: 27. (Daughter)3, probably married William Dennis of
North Carolina who, 19 Nov. 1725, deeded the 800 acres patented
by Thomas! Gray to 17. William3 Gray.4

10. MARY3 HUX (Mary? Gray, Thomas!) died by 2 May 1693
when administration on her estate was granted 10 Samuel Also-
brook and Mary his wife.* She married 'Thomas Ironmonger who
deposed, 3 March 1684/5, he was aged 49, but stated 7 Nov. 1690
he was aged 60.4* Mary3 as administratrix returned an inventory of
the estate of Thomas Ironmonger, 7 July 1691 .46

Issue: [IRONMONGER] 28, Susannaht, named in the will of her
uncle William3 Hux, 1676; 29. Mary4, also named in William Hux's
will, married Samuel Alsobrook, on whose estate administration
was granted to John Thompson, 5 Nov. 1696;47 30. Ann%, men-
tioned as orphan of Thomas, 3 Nov. 1696;% 31, Thomas?, died
intestate 1711.4

16. WILLIAM3 GRAY (Francis?, Thomas!) deposed 7 Nov. 1690
he was aged 28 or thereabouts.® He owned 100 acres in Surry
County, 1704. He married Mary and left will, 10 Feb. 1710/1-
20 Oct. 1714,5! naming his wife and son.

Issue: 32. Thomas?, possibly physically disabled,52 chose William
Foster as his guardian, 21 Aug. 1717.5

17. WILLIAM3 GRAY (William?, Thomas!), born abow 1676—
77, owned 1050 acres in Surry County, 1704. He was a member of
the House of Burgesses 1713-14, 1723-26, 1730-34,% and sheriff
of Surry County, 18 June 1718. He married, by 3 March 1701/2,5
8. Mary? Holt (see HOLT), daughter of Randall2 Holt and widow of

41 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 3, 168487, 174,

no pagination. She signed 1he inventory as
Mary Nicholson; Robert Nicholsun swore
o an accounting, 5 May 1685.

42 Surry Co. Decds, Wills &c 2, 1671-84,
p. 330,

43 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &¢ 7, 1715-30,
p. 621,

44 Surry Co. Order Bk. 169(-1713,
p 7L

45 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 3, 1684-87,
no pagination; Deeds, Wills &c 4, 1687494,
p. 183,

46 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 4, [687-44,
pp. 212-13,

47 Surry Co. Order Bk, 1641-1713, p.

18 td., p. 170,

19 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 6, 1709-15,
p- 54

3 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c¢ 4, 168794,
p. 183a,

3L Surry Co, Deeds, Wills & 5, 1694—
1704, p. 212,

52 Surty Co. Order Bk, 1713-18, p. 5.
His father petitioned 20 May 1713 that

T'homas be exempted from levies.

54 tbid., p. 121,
3 Leonard, pp. 67, 74, 74, 77.
# Surry Co. Order Bk. 1691-1713,

p. 222,
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John Seward. His will, 10 March 1731/2-16 June 1736,56 and her
will, 31 March 1756-20 Dec. 1757 57 named their children.

Issue: 33. William®, born 1703, patented 5000 acres in New Kent
County, 29 June 1739.5¥ as resident of New Kent County sold land
he had inherited from his father, 4 Dec. 1744,% was justice of New
Kent, 1742, Burgess, 1742-475" and vestryman of St. Peter's
Parish, 1745-48, 1751-54, when Muj. William Gray was recorded
as “"Remov'd out of this Colony,”? married Elizabeth (Littlepage)
Chamberlayne, daughter of Richard Litlepage and widow of
William Chamberlayne of New Kent;5 34, Robertt, born 1704,
died 1777, qualilied as sheriff of Surry County, 1749,% moved 10
Edgecombe Co., N.C., left will 18 Feb. 1781-Aug. 1781,% married
Mary ; 35. Josepht, born 1707, colonel of milita, justice, 1749,
sheriff, 1751, and Burgess from Isle of Wight County, 174249,
and Southampton County, 1755-69,% left will 30 Aug. 1769-13
June 1771,57 married (1), 14 Dec. 1729,55 Sarah Simmons, daugh-
ter of Col. John Simmons, and (2), about 1748,6% Sarah ,
named in his will; 36. Thomast, admiued to practice as an attorney
in Surry County, 19 Sept. 1745;70 37, Lucy?, born 1711, left will 25
June 1778-18 Feb. 1779,7 married Howell Briggs, of “Wales,”
Dinwiddie County, justice and caprain of militia, who died 21 April
1775 in his 66th year,7 leaving will 16 Dec. 1772-21 Sept. 17757
38. Edmund?, under 21 in 1731, given land in Isle of Wight
County by his father which, as a resident of Goochland County, he
sold 10 his brother Joseph, 26 Sept. 1745;7 39, James?, under 21 in
1731, left will 9 Feb. 1788-25 June 1788,7 married Sarah .

20. GILBERT3 GRAY (William2, Thomas!) married (1) —— and
(2) Margaret Taylor, daughter of John Taylor and his wife Ann
who married (2) Nicholas Magit.7 Gilbert3 Gray lefi a will, 8 April

36 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c B, 1730-38,
p. 604,

37 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills & 10, 1754~
68, p. 113; Order Bk. 1757-63, p. 43.

34 Pajent Bk. i85, pp. 291-92.

5% Surry Co. Deed Bk. 4, 1741-46, pp.
277-81.

it Leonard, p. 79.

82 (0. (5. Chamberlayne, ed., The Vestry
Book and Regster of §t. Peler's Parush (Rich-
mond. 1937), pp. 287, 293, 306, 309, $16.

83 Mulcolm H. Harris, Ofd New Kent
County (West Point, Va., 1977), L. p. 127,

&4 Surry Co. Order Bk. 174951, p. 4.

63 Edgecombe Co., N.C., Wil Bk. B, pp.

64-67.

& Leonard, pp. 79, 81, B5, 87, 93, 96.

67 Southampton Co. Will Bk. 2, p. 411.

o Family Bible, in ¥ XXX, p. 64.

649 fhed,

" Surry Co. Order Bk. 1744-49, p. 85.

73 Sussex Co. Will Bk, C, p. 323,

"2 Albemarle Parish Register: V XLIV,
P 232,

73 Sussex Co. Wil Bk. C, pp. 190-92,

74 Isle of Wight Co. Decd Bk. 7, p. 365.

5 Surry Co. Will Bk, 2, p. 129,

76 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 7, p. 366;
Decds, Wills &c 9, p. 503; Deeds, Wills &c
[0, p. 8.

[ 343



ADVENTURERS OF PURSE AND PERSON

1758—18 Dec. 1764,77 and Margaret Gray left a nuncupative will,
27 June 1767-17 Nov. 1767.78

Issue: (by 1) 40. Josepht, married —; 42. Elizabeth*, married
Mathias Marriott who left will 13 July 1774-22 Nov. 1774;7 43.
Sarah?, married Thomas Washington, Jr.; (by 2) 44. William1,
named in the will of his maternal grandmother, Ann Magit, 5 Sept.
1752, but not in that of his father, 1758; 45. John?, resided in
Edgecombe Co., N.C., 21 Dec. 1777, when he sold land his father
had purchased from William Gray of New Kent County in 1741,30
married Mary ——; 46. Mary4, married —— Clinch; 47. Lucy?, left
will 31 Dec. 1772-28 Sept. 1778;8! 48. James?, under 21 in 1772.

992, FAITH3 GRAY (William2, Thomas!), born about 1688, died
about 1720, married William Ruffin who settled in the part of
Bertie Co., N.C., which in 1741 became Northampton County. He
married (2) Sarah (Craffurd) Newsum and died before 10 Feb.
1738/9 when the inventory of his estate was made.82

Issue [RUFFINT] 49. William?, born about 1708, of Northampton
Co., N.C., left will 1 March 1779-Nov. 1781, Bertie Co., N.C.,83

married —; 50. Ethelred?, born about 1710, left will 30 March
1777=June 177784 of Northampton Co., N.C., married
Martha ——; 51. Robert4, born about 1712, left will 28 March

1767-Aug. 17678 married, 1733, Anne Benneu, daughter of
Capt. William and Grace Bennett;8 52. Samuelt, born about 1716,
died before 23 Feb. 1779 when his sons Ethelred and Gray Ruthin
were granted administration on his estate,§7 justice and sheriff,
1778, of Edgecombe Co., N.C., member of North Carolina Assem-
bly, 1762,88 married Sarah McWilliams,89

25. (DAUGHTER)? GRAY (William2, Thomas!) married
Andrews,

Issue [ANDREWS] 53. William4, named in his grandfather’s will,
1719.

77 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &« L0, p. 378,

% lnd., p. 489.

79 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills &c 104,
p- 389.

8 Surry Co. Deed Bk. 10, p. 262.

81 Surry Co. Deeds, Wills, &c L0A,
p- 317,

& Bertie Co., N.C., Original Estates Pa-
pers, North Carolina Archives file
C.R.010.504.1, Box 83,

8 Bertie Co., N.C., Will Bk. C, pp. 28—
30; John Bennew Boddie, Hustorical Soulh-

ern Families, X (Honolulu, 1965), p. 227.

8 Northampion Co., N.C.., WIIl Bk. 1,
pp. 13-16.

8 ftad., pp. 153-55.

86 fbid., pp. 11315, will of William Ben-
nett, 7 July 1758-Feb. 1765,

87 Edgecombe Co., N.C., Minutes 1772—
#4, no pagination.

88 North Curolina Governmend, [ 5891979
(Raleigh, 1981), p. 49.

8 Northampion Co., N.C., Deed Bk. 1,
p. 7
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26. (DAUGHTER)? GRAY (William2, Thomas!) married ——
Edwards.

Issue: [EDWARDS] 54. Elizabeth?, named in her grandfather’s
will, 1719,

GRENDON

*1. EDWARD! GRENDON was in Virginia by 1616. He was
called “an auncient Planter” when he received a patent for 150
acres of land, 5 Dec. 1620.! This land, called the Old Fort and
Grendon’s Hill, was in what is now Surry Counuy, opposite James
City, and became part of the Treasurer's (George Sandys’) Plania-
tion.? He also owned land on James Island.? He represented the
Plantations over the Water in the General Assembly of 1624 and
Shirley in that of 1628.4 Although he was in the List of the Living,
16 Feb. 1623/4, alone;® Mistress Grendon is mentioned 7 Feb.
1627/8.6 On 4 July 1627 Mr. Grindon was named second in
comand to Capt. West to go against the Tappahannaes.” His will,
now lost, was proved 9 Dec. 1628.# He left 650 acres of land to
Thomas Grendon, “his heir in England,” which Thomas sold to
Capt. George Evelyn, 3 Aug. 16499

Issue: 2. THOMASZ,

2. THOMAS2 GRENDON (Edward!), a mature man wl')len his
father died, seems to have divided his time between Virginia and
London. He was a member of the General Assembly of 1633 for
Smith’s Mount, the other side of the water and Hogg Island,® but
was a2 merchant of London 12 April 1638.¢! As Thomas Grendon
of Dukes Place, citizen and draper of Londen, he left a will, 15 Dec.
1678-29 Oct. 1680, which referred to lands in Fultherley in
Shension, Staffordshire.!2 His wife Elizabeth —— survived him but
he survived his only son.

Issue: 3. THOMAS?: 4. Hannah3.

3. THOMAS? GRENDON (Thomas?, Edward!) died before
Dec. 1678, the date of his father’s will. He married Elizabeth ——,

I Patent Bk. 4, p. 316; R, Va. Co. [1, p. Tibd., p. 151,
45: 1V, p. 555 The name also appears as N fbed,, p. 179,
GRINDALL and GRENDON. 4 Patent Bk. 4, p. 516.
2 Patent Bk, 1, p. 775. W Leonard, p. 12,
1 1bid., p. 630. i1 Patent Bk. 1, p. 630.
1 Leonard, pp. 5, 7. 1z PC.C. 128 Bath, in V XIV, pp. 207-
3 Hollen, p. 180, 08.

S MCGC, p. 163,
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THE GRAVES FAMILY OF 155X CO.
By Mgs. P. W, IlibEx

The writer for some Jifteel1 years has been working 1o asscmble a
proven genealogy of the Graves family in Virginia, connecting them in-
dubitably with sturdy Capt. Thomas Graves, “an Ancient Planter.” lu her
search, not whally successful, the author has accumulated as a sort of
by-product so much hitherto buried data that its publication scems de-
sirable. The Graves families in the different counties will be treated from
their first proven ancestor in an effort to comect them with Capt. Thomas.!

In an old number of the D. A. R. Magazine (Val. 49, p. 396) is
found th‘uls anonymous cuotation so aptly descriptive of all genealogical
effort: “I have gon and rid and wrote and search'd with my own and
my friends’ eyes to make what Discoveries 1 ¢'d therein. . . . I stand
ready with a pencil in one hand and a spunge in the other to add, alter
insert, expunge, enjarge and (elete according to better information,” ’ Since
there were Graves families living in Gloucester, New Kent, King.William
and King & Quuven (counties fatal to genealogical hope), the writer has
{(_)L;rrtd this a very difhecult task and will welcome any additional informa-
LOIL.

Mr. W. M. Sweeny having by hitherto uapublish i
descent from Capt. Thomas! Graves thru his sonp anc(;glgd:ﬁ: \f:'tiigls\ll?ﬂ
now d|5cu§s this descent more fully, She would first gr,atefully acknowl!-
edge her indebtedness to Mr, Sweeny for many courtesies and suggestions
that directed her thoughts into new channels, The fact which had escaped

Mr. Sweeny's discovery.

. & M., Znd serics, Vol 15, pp. 385-

394,
Capt. Thomas? Graves, the sturdy and capable grogenitor whom My
Sweeny has described to us, must have been on his acrival in 1608 in the
prime of youth else he conld hardly have survived his expericnces, We
wortld plaf:c lus birth therefore as about 1580, He represented Su'1ylltc's
Hundred in the first House of Burgesses 1619, was Burgess from Acco-
mack 1630 and 1632, and from the fact that he is on Jan. 9, 1634-5 desig-
nated as Esquire must in the meanwhile bave been a member of the COHE-
cil. (Accomack Rec. 1632-40, p. 30.) From the patent granted John?
Graves in 1637 (Nugent's Cavaliers and Pioneers, Vol. 1, p. 62) for land
due by “descent from his father,” we consider John2 the oldest son and
born net later than L6I6. Since neither wife nor chifdren appear with
Capt. Tl'ms.}‘m the Muster taken after the massacre, we infer that Xath-
erine, his wifg, and sons John? and Thomas2 came over later. John?
established himself in the upper end of Elizabeth City Co., very close to
York in which ecuuty lis descendants are later found, and Thomas,? the
second son established himself oo Timberneck Creck in Gloucester '(Nu-
gent, Cavaliers ‘&- Pioneers, Vol, 1, p. 416).  Francis? the youngest son,
was born m Yirginia, probably around 1630, since he was still a minor
and described as “orphan of Capt. Thomas Graves deed.” in 1642. From
this date untjl 1672 we have no information ahout Francis2 tho z careful
search of Norfhampton Recards might yield a few itcmls. It is likel
from the associates his family chose that he spent sometime in GIoucesteyr
hefore settling in Fssex. It is also most probable that he had lived in
Essex before patenting land there and that the 714 a. he patented October
10, 1672 (5. L. O. 6, p, 436), “on the south side of the river, part on the
i)ran(."h of Gilson's Creek and part on Hoskins Creek adjoini;lg My, Bev-
erley's corner,” represented a choice of location rather than just the re-

all ; as 3 i i
. other searchers, namcly, that Capt. Thomas! had a son Francis® js.
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ward for transporting 14 persons, e married, whether for the first or
second time we da not know, about 1678, aud gave certain cattle to his
step-children, John and Jane Maguffey and FElizabeth Davenport (O1d
Rappa. Rec. 13 & W. 6, 1 573, The original deed is preserved among
ihe Loose Papers of Kssex and shows VFrancis® Graves' firm signature.
Trancis? was dead by August 1691, and his widow Jane soon n_mrnegl John
Doughty, whe in 1694 deeded certain property to her sons, Francis,3 Richard®
and Thomasd Graves ([Essex D. & W. 6, Reverse of book, p. 296). John
Doughty died between 1704, when he is listed in the Quit Rent Roll (Va.
May. Vol. 33, p. 262}, and 1715, when Trancis® and Thoma53 Graves appear
on the list {Essex Quit Rent Roll 1715, Archives Division, Va. State Li-
brary). We regret we have not discovered the maiden name of the allur-
ing Jane who seems to have married successively John Maguffey, -
Davenport, Franeis? Graves and John Doughty.

Richard,? son of Francis?® and Jane Graves, left Essex between 1708
and 1714 (Essex (. B. 1708-14, pp. 608-609). e and Francis Shackel-
ford had bought a sloop in partnership, and they probably engaged in
coastwise trade, Taking all known facts into accownt, it would seem he
is identical with the Richardd Graves of Craven Precinct, N. C., who il
his wifl, dated April 11, 1730, referred to nephews “Richard?* and Francis?
soms of brother Thomas® Graves in Virginia.," (Grimes Abstract of N. C.
Wills, p. 140.)  In the Essex Order Book already mentioned, Francis?
Graves testifies on September, 1714, that since leaving Essex Co, Richard3
has sent him 2 small Indian boy in payment for a debt. This ability to
pay his debts would indicate Richard’s® business was prospering. He took
a promipent part in the affairs of Craven Precinct and was a person of
recognized ability, In 1726 he represented the Precinct in the Lower
House of the Assemhly of N. C. (Col. Records of N. C,, Vol. 2, p. 52$).
The writer has no lnowledwe of his wile, who cvidently predeceased him,
since she is not mentioned o lis will. e had a son Thomast who was
living as late as 1760 {Col. Rec. of N. C., vol. 6, pp. 342-3), and a daughter
Mary! who by 1730 was the wife of Farnifold Green. .

Feancis? and Thomas? Graves renmined in Essex.  Their associates
were the Reeves, Reynolds, Wallers, Hiplans, Colemans, Streshleys, Pamp-
lins, Roanes and Upshaws, though exact relationships bave not come to
light. Most of these familities came from Gloucester to Essex, and a few
facts about them may be given. Jas, Reeves (d. 1707, . & W, 13, p. 153)
and his wife Hlizabeth (d 1712, D & W. 14, p. 17) had among other
children a daughter Ann, who married Edward, son of Robert Coleman
(D, & W. 13, p. 439). Robert Coleman also had a soen Thomas who
scems to have been an cspecially close friend of Thomas® Graves and
of his son Johnt Chas. Waller received a legacy from Thos. Reynolds
(D & W. 14, p. 117), probably they were connected by marriage. Charles
Waller’s daughter Hannah married Edward Webb, and his daughter Sarah
married —. .o __ Hili (Stafford Rec. Book 0, p. 53} Jane Maguffey,
half sister af Thomas$ and Francis? Graves secms to have married (1)
Thomas Blanton ¢ Fssex 0. B, 1695-99, p. 8) (2} Thomas Sanders
(Fssex D & W. 13, p. 139)5 (3} Richard Hill (Essex D. & W. 17, p.
310). This Hill connection may accotnt far the friendship with the Wallers,
Thos. Hipkins died 1731; in his will (W. B. 5, p. 50}, to which Francis®
Graves was a witness, he mentions wife Cordelia, sons John, Thomas and
Andrew, and davghters Sarah, who married (1) Wm. Clark, {2y John
Cnornal, Susanna, who married Jas Clark son of Edward Clark (W. B.
6, p. 48), and Hamah who married Geo, Green (See W. B. 12, p. 421,
W. B. 11, p, 195, W. B. 8, n 248). * Cordelia Hipkins was_the oldest
daughter of Capt. Wm. Upshaw who came from Gloucester to Essex about
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1714, His will {(W. B. 3, p. 143) dated Dec. 16, 1716, proved May 17,
1720, leaves to son Jeremmh 350 a., the lower part of the plantation on
which the testatar resides, 1o son Rlclmr(l the remainder of the tract, to
son Wm. the Quarter land lying in the fork of Gilsom's Swamp, 1o son
John the plantation in Gloucester, to cldest daughter Cordelia Hipkins, to
daughter Susanna Brooking, to mother Cordelia Martin, remainder to he
equally divided between wife and the children he has had by her. Ilannuh,
his widow, (b. 1679 D, B. 23, p. 105), who was probably a Forrest since she
had a son Forrest Upshaw, survived him 43 years, dying in 1763, From
the receipt Thomas Coaper Dickinson gave to Win, Upshaw, Feb. 9, 1718/9
(W. B. 7, p. 302), Hanpah married (1) James Carber, (2) W:lllam Up-
shaw; by the first marriage there was at least one child Mary, who at
this date was the wife of Thomas Cooper Dickinson. [For this note the

writer is indebted to Mrs. M. 11, Headman of Haddonfield, N. J.] In her
will {W. R. 12, p. 50) she gave specific legacies 1o certain children and
grumldnldrcn, requesting the remainder be divided inte seven parls for cer-
tain legatees, These ng'ltLt:S {(W. B. 12, p. 164) were: (1} her son John
(b. 1715, . B. 23, 105); (2) the representatwcs of her daughter Mrs.
Sarah ho:mc, decd. (who had been the wife of Col. Wm, Roane . 1756} ;
(3) the represematives of her son Jeremiah (d. 1746), namely, James Up-
shaw and Hannzh wife of Daviel Sullivan; (4) the representatives of her
daughter Mrs. Hannah Jooes, decd, namely Jfames Upshaw in right of
his wike; (5) Col. Samuel Hipkins in right of his wife Margaret; (6)
grandson Thomas Cooper Dickinson (b, Dec. 15, 1720, eldest son of Mary
Carber (h. 1702} and Thomas Cooper DJCklllSD[], decd. (1D, B. 23, p. 105},
and (7} the representatives of her daughter Mrs. Ann Daws decd.
Nicholas Pamplin, another transplanted Gloucesterian, . 1751 (W’. b1
p. 403), leaving wife Saraly and scveral children, Of these, William, the
oldest sou, died 2 few years later, amnd mentioned in his will “Uncle Wil-
liam Roane” (W. B 9, po 139). Irom this we infer Nicholas Pamplin
married Sarah Roane. A Thamas Streshley in 1682 witaessed a dead
from davicl Ennis to Robert King (Old Rappa, 1677-82, p. 370) and
1704 Quit Rent Roll owned 200 a. in Fssex, TTis land adjoined that of
John Doughty. In a dispute over a ling between Henry Reeves and Wil-
liam Daingerfield in 1723, Thomas Streshley, “a very antient man,” who
had lived there 25 years, was called upon to trace the bounds of Reeves'
land (. B. 17, p. 272}. James Reynolds, aged 58, testified on July 14,
1737, that Thos. Sireshley had a son, Thomas, Jr., who predeceased his
father, leaving a widow Hammah (Essex Loosc Tapers 1727). In his
will {W. B. 5, p. 372), Thos. Streshley, Jr., mentions his father for whose
maintenance he provides, his wife Hannal, daughter Tamezin Upshaw and
ather children. In 1739 (D. B. 19, p. 102) Francis Gouldman for 1600 £
Virginia money leased 140 a. to Thas, Streshley, Jr., his sons Thos. and
William, and daughter Tamezin or to the survivor,

In concluding these items nhout families associated with the Graves,

* we would note Johm Magaffey (b, 1670), half-brother of Francis,3 Richard?
and Thomas? Graves. Susanaa McGuire in her will, dated 1608, mentions
daughter Susanna Maguffey, and John Maguffey one of the wilnesses states
at the probate of the will that he was then {(1698% 28 vears of age (D. &
W. 9, p. 196). Either he or his son moved to King & Queen, as the fol-
lowing shows: I3. B. 22, p. 382, Aug, 17, 1742, John x Maguffey of Drys-
dale Par, K. & Q. Ccu, ta Robert BrOOkmg of St, Stephen’s Par, K.
& ., for 1150 1bs of tobacco, 71 a. (except 40 ft. square reserved for a
burying ground), adjoining Henry Crittenden, etc, part of this 71 a.
being a portion of a tract John Maguffey purchased of Edmund Paget
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Aug. 13, 1670, and the remainder purchased of Thomas Gouldman Nov. 1,
1672; wit. John Upshiaw, Wm. Reynolds, Henry Crittenden.

Francis? Graves d. 1748 (Lssex W. B. 8, p. 90); his wife Ann and
son Willianet were his cxors, and William and James Reynolds were
sectrities on the exors. bond, Mr. Sweeny has traced the ling of Clarat
Higginbotham, probably the oldest daughter, but there 1s np information
as to her sisters, Janet, Ann? Elizabetld and Mary4 all unmarried at the
date of their father's will. Anne, the widow, was lwmg as late as Oct.
21, 1765, for on that date “on petition of Ann Graves it is ordered that
James and Robert Reynolds, Jas. Key and James Clark or any three of
them divide the estate of Francis3 Graves decd. as devised in his will”
{O. B. 26, p. 284)., It seesns probable that Ann was a Reynolds, and
possibly a second wife. In 1726 (D. B. 18, p. 213) Richard Coleman sold
to Francis® Graves 50 a. near Cockleshell Creek adjoining Thos. Hipkins,
James Reynolds and sd. Graves. When Rlchard Colemnman acknowledges
receipt of the purclase price, a Jane Graves is a witness; whether she was
a daughter or the first wife of Francis,® the writer cannot say. It seems
kg:t:mate to infer from this petition of Ann’s that William4 was dead by
this time (1763).

William?, Francis's® only son, appears so seldom in Fssex records that
we believe he resided on the portion of his father’s land that lay in Caro-
line Co. He was born about 1700 ¢r 1702, as the Francis® who secms his
son was horn 1724, In 1755 (D). B. 27, p. 134) James Reynolds for £3
current money sold to Wm.4 Graves of ‘Caroline 10 a. in the fork of two
sinall branches of Cockleshell Creek adjoining the lands of the widow Hip-
kins {Cordelia, widow of Thos, Hipkins} and sd. Graves. On the same
day (D, B. 27, p. 136) Wm.?t Graves of Caroline sold to John Satterwhite
this 10 a. he had just bought and 250 a. hesides, describing this 250 a. as
tand lying partly in Essex and partly in Caroline “where Francis® Graves
ded. amd WA Graves formerly dwelt.”  Dorothy, wile of Wmt re-
linquished her dower rights in this land, In March 1756 (D. B. 27, p.
195) this deed is re-recorded, Dorothy appearing as co-grantor with her
hushand ; this was likely done to carry out some private agrecment between
Wint Graves and John Satterwhite, We first hear of John Satterwhite
when he moved from King & Queen to Essex in 1737 (D, B. 21, p. 285).
It seems likely that his wife Ann was the daughter of Francis? Graves.
In 1743, having in the meantime gone to Caroline Co., he sold this land
which ad]omed Francis3 Graves and James Reynolds to Samucl Hipkins
(2. B. 23, p. 13), hushand of Margaret Upshaw (W. B. 12, p. 164). As
we find later, the juxtaposition of Graves and Satterwhite lands resulted
in the marriage of Riced Graves and Clary Satterwhite. In 1757 a Wm,
Graves whether this Wm? or his son, was summoned for military duty
in Essex (. B. 27, pp. 308, 320). He is not in the list of those to be
sent to Fredericksburg and on to Winchester, which inclines vus to believe
it was Wm.4 and that he was excused from active duty on account of his
age.

We have no documentary proof of William'st children, nor of the
maiden name of his wife. Only one person appears in Essex records whom
we can identify from circumstantial evidence as his son, and that is Fran-
cis® (1724-1792%, THis land seems to have been in the same neighborhood
as that of his grandfather, Francis,$ and he associates with the same fami-
lies. Im 1757 (D. B. 27, n. 321) we find him together with Wm, Rey-
nolds, Wm. Waitkins and Leonard Hill witnessing a deed from Thomas
Coleman to Richard Hill. The next year he bought of Samuel x and
Ann x Cross 62 a. devised to sd. Samuel by the will of his father, Joseph
Cross, who bought this land Feb, 19, 1744/5 from John Cheek of Drys-
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dale Par.; witnesses: John Garnett, Jr., Joseph Crass, Wimn. Southworth
(D. B. 28, p. 79). [In 1762, he hought from John and Mary Garnett 48 &,
purchased by sd. Garnett in 1746 of Thos, Dabson (1. 1B, 29, p 83). In
1763 (D, 1. 29, p. 220) he bought 4734 a, in So. Farabam Par., adjain-
ing John Iill, Graves & Watkins, from Richard ITolt, Sr., aod -Mary Lis
wife of K. & (. The Garnetts and Graves had long been neighbors and
in 1751 (D. B. 25, p. 131) Rueben and Sarah Noell for love and affection
had deeded “to our brother John Garnett, Jr.” land adjoining lands of
“Ann Graves widow of Francis? Graves,” John Satterwhite, Philip San-
ders and Ann Dickie, widow. In 1761 (T3, B, 29, p. 10) Thos. Davis,
tailor, of the Par. of Nottoway, Co. of Amelia, sold to Francis® Graves
of So. Farnham Par. 100 a. in 5t. Ann’s Par. which John Davis, father
of sd. Thomas, purchased of Geo. Coleman, adjoining John Garnett; wit.:
Leonard i, Jas. Evans, Richard Hill, Jr. and Martha Beazley.

Francis5 Graves's cbituary (Richmond, Va., Gazette & General Ad-
vertiser, April 4, 1792} is as follows: “Dded on Friday” (March) “23rd
at his seat in Essex after a long and painful ifllness which he bore with a
deat of fortitude Mr. lrancis Graves in the G8th year of his age much
lamented by all those whao had the pleasure of his acquaiitance.”

Francis’sb will (Fssex W. B. 14, p. 285) mentions son Francis,® to
whom is left “the fand I purchased of Thos. Davis”: daughter Luca® Spear-
man; son Rice,® who receives “land I purchased of Richard Holt and
also that purchased from Samuel Cross to John Hill's line”; and daughter
Betty? Graves. The wording of these bequests shows that the sons were
not at this time residents of Essex. The only mention in Essex that the
writer so far has found of Rice® is when with Elizabeth® and Susannah
Graves he witnesses Dec. 21, 1779, the will of Timothy Longest, The
will is praved Dec. 19, 1781, hy Rice® and Flizaheth® Graves. Susanaah,
most likely, was Rices® mother and bhad died in the interim.  Francis's®
will mentivus no wife, so he evidently was a widower.

Luca® Spearman, named in her father’s will, was wife of Jas. Specar-
man, and in {794 (D, B. 34, p. 100} they sell the 58 a. given them “by
Francis® Graves's will.” Beyond that, we have no information about her,

Fraucis® Graves, aged 36, a merchant, is listed in 1782 as having heen
a resident of Richmwnd for 7 mos. (Heads of Families, First Census of
the U. 5. 1790, State Enumerations of Va. from 1782 to 1785 p. 111).
He had dealings in several counties, and one finds him in Halifax and
Louisa County records, as well as in Richmond. He married Aug. 19,
1783, Martha Johnson (Henrico Co. M. B.). His parentage is proved by
the following: Fssex D. B. 34, p. 87, Mar. 28 .17%4, Francis® Graves
and Martha his wife of Richmond to Jas. Sale of Fssex for 130 £ cur-
rent money all that parcel of land in 5t. Ann’s Parish which my {father
Francis® Graves purchased of Thos Dawvis Mar. 8, 1761, begimning at
land formerly owned by John Garnett decd. and by him sold to Francis3
Graves and others containing 9914 a, reserving 4 a. for a graveyard and
liberty af traveling there on foot.  Wit,: E, Davis, James Spearman,
Samuel Griffin.  Despite search, nothing definite is known of the place or
date of death of Francis® and Martha Graves, tho hoth were dead by
1806. In that year {(Chancery Court, Richmond, Book 4, p. 560) John
Addison and Elizabeth? his wife, formerly Elizaheth? Graves, Francis?
Graves and Sanwuel? Graves, “which sd. Francis, Wm. and Samuel are
children of Francis Graves deed, and infant under the age of 21 years by
John Addison their guardian,” conveyed to Joseph Higbee a certain lot
m Richmond known as “Rol’s Tenement,” With reference to these chil-
dren of Francis,® we have information about enly one, Francis,? Jr., who
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never married and dicd in Goochland Co. in 1858, In the 1850 census, he
is listed as “aged 60, born in Va, farmer.”

Rice? Graves, horn prohably about 1750, married hetween 1772‘ and
1777 Clary Satterwhite, danghter of Jolm and Amn Sntt?rwlutc, of Essex
Co. (Lissex Rec. W. B. 13, p. 320), and died about 1822 in Goochland Co.,
where he had moved prior to his father's death. “Rice Graves, rank not
shown, Capt. John Webb's Company 7th Virgima Regiment, commanded by
Col. Alexander McClenachan. He enlisted for two years, date not shown.
His name first appears on the company muster roll covering a period from
December 29, 1776, dated May 21, 1777, The Company muster roll for
February, 1778, dated Valley Forge March 7, shows him discharged
February 147 (Adjutant General's Office, War Department, Washington. )
He lived in the Parish of St. James Northam and was a vestryman there
in 1799. His wife Clara was living as late as 1829, In his will (Gooch-
land Rec. D. B. 25, p. 97), dated Jan. 16, 1813, and proved nine years
later, he mentions daus. AnnT Franky,? IMarriott? and Spottswood?; son
Jas.?; Granddau. Lliza® Nuckelds, dau. of Patsey? Nuckolds; son Thos.
I3, and wife Clary, who he desires “shall be maintained genteelly out ol
the whole of my estate.” T )

(4 the children named in his will, Martha? (“Patsey”) marricd in
Goochland Mar. 8, 1801, Andrew Knight Nuckols; Jas. M7 married in
Goochland April 14, 1807, Polly M. Clements; Ann? married in Gooch-
land July 20, 1820, Joha Satterwhite; and Thos, E7 married May 17,
1820, Nancy Carden of Nottaway (Richmond Enguirer, May 30, 1820, o.
3, col. 6). Nancy Carden was likely the dau. of Jesse Carden who mar-
ried in Goochland July 30, 180%, Clary Satterwhite.

Thomas .5 Graves served in the War of 1812 as a private in C_apt.
William M. Holman's Company, 7th Regiment, (Gray’s) Virginia Militia,
T1is service commenced Aug. 28, 1814 and ended Vel 19, 1815, (War De-
partment, Adjutant General's Office, Washington.)

Jas. M.? Graves does not appear in the 1820 nor 1830 Goochland cen-
sus, tho in 1829, he with his wife Mary M. sold to Martin James land
that had been bequeathed him by his father {Goochland Rec.}; his mother
Clara joined in the deed, In Goochtand Rec. is the marrviage May 31,
1826, of Henry A, Houchins and a Clarissa Graves, probably Jas? Graves’
daughter. In Amherst Rec. is the marriage Aug. 19, 1833, of Permelia
Gregory and Rice 128 Graves who was clearly a son of JamesT M. Graves.
From the History of Daviess Co. Ky., p. 861, we have: "P. 5.2 Graves
b. in Amherst Cao., Va. on Aug. 9, 1844; his father Rice® Graves a native
of Va. came to Ky. when P. S.% was an infant and located in Breckenridge
Co.; in 1847 moved to Daviess Co.” “Taylor H? Graves b. in 1847 in
Yelvinglon Precinct was the son of Rice® F. Graves, a native of Gooch-
land Co., Va. ‘When Mr. Graves’s father left Va. he intended going to
Miss., the steamer was sunk but all were saved, two of his brothers, James
F9 and Varland® jumped astride a barrell of whiskey and were saved'.”

Thos. E.7 Graves, b. about 1790 or 1795, son of Rice® Graves, re-
mained in Goochland, and probably died between 1840 and 1850, as he
does not appear in the 1850 census. His children were: (1) John® The
records of the War Department show that one John T.8 Graves, lst Lieu-
tenant, Company D, 44th Regiment Virginia Infantry, Confederate States
Army, enlisted June 8 1861, at Isbells Store. He was appointed from
Virginia, as Captain, Assistant Commissary of Subsistence, C. 5. A., March
18, 1862, to take rank March 3, 1862, and assigned to the 44th Regiment
Virginia Infantry, C. 5. A. Union Records show that he was captured
April 3, 1865 in hospital, imprisoned at Washington Strect Hospital,
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Petershurg, Va, and was paroled by Provost Marshall of Petershurg, Va.,
April 19, 1865, as Captain on Gencral William Tarry's Staff. d. about
1860, buried at “Locust Date,” Goochland Co. (2} Susan A8 m. Dee
14, 1849, Thos. Jefferson Lipes Parrish.  (3) lLucy Anng b, 1828, m. Oct
7, 1848, Wm. Satterwhite, of Goochland. (4) Mary Magdalend Graves
(Mar. 4, 1826-June 6, 1900) m. Jan. 4, 1849, as his second wife, Dabncy
Pacrish (Jan. 22, 1803-Mar. 10, 1879). Dabney Parrish was born at T'ros-
pect Hill, Lonisa Co., son of Huwmnphrey Parrish, and Mary Anne Raine.
Dabuey and Mary M8 (Graves) Parrish had issue: (1) Frederick Mor-
timer? {April 27, 1850-Nov, 24, 1906); (2} Delia A% {b. July 22, 1852,
d. young); (3) Amanda MY (b. Scpt, 7, 1854, d. young); (4) Clara
Susan® (May 7, 1857-June 28, 1929; (5) Magdalene R.2 (b, Nov. §,
1858, d. young); (6) Nancy Russell (Aug. 24, 1860-May 25, 1934);
(7) Jefterson Davis? (b, July 27, 1862, d. young); (8) Henry Thompson®
(Dec. 28, 1864-June 22, 19353). For this information relative to the sons
of Francisd Graves (1724-1792) of Essex Co., the writer is indebted to
Mr. Graves Thomas of Richmond.

We come next to Thomas,2 youngest son of Francis? and Jane Graves,
and born probably about 1684 or 5. He does nat often appear in the
records, and many questions about him remain unanswered. Qur first men-
tion of him after the deed of gift in 1684 is the following: Iissex D. &
W. 10, p. 48, Jan. 9, 1699/1700. Farry Beverley sells to John Doughty
for life and at his deccase to Thamas Graves 240 a. part of Maj. Robert
Beverley’s patent, land adjoining Thos. Streshley; wit;: John Sanders, Wm.
Upshaw, Thos. x Streshley, James Reynolds. In 1713, he witnessed a deed
fram John Garnett to Wm, Taylor (D). & W. 14, p. 110). In the same
year he went on the bond of Chas, Waller, exor, for Mary Welsh (D &
W. 14, p. 154}, In 1721, Alex. Somerville, of S. Farnham Par,, sold
to Joln Dagge, of 5t. Anne's Par., for 4200 ths. tobacen, 500 a. on Gil-
som’s Swamp “being the plantation he possessed hy the courtesy ol Fng-
land and lately possessed by Thos® Graves” (1% & W. 16, po 273). A
entry in Bssex (0. B. 5, p. 31Z, June 16, 1719 seems to show that Alex.
Somerville m. Frances widow of Henry Byron, and he was probably self-
ing his life right in this land, In 1733 (T2, B. 20, p. 146) Thos# Graves
sold Streshley for 15£ 14s current money 76 a., part of 240 a. belonging
to sd. Graves heginning at a great pine near the head of a small hranch
between Streshley's andl Graves’s plantation adjoining Daniel Sullivan;
wit.: Wm. Roane, Wm, Waller, Tamisen Streshley, John x Maguffey.
Five vears later (D, B. 21, p. 422), he sells to Hannah Streshley, widow
of Thos. Jr., the rematning 164 a., describing it thus: “Beginning at a
white cak in James Reynolds’s line and by the sd. James Reynoldss
church path, thence along John Hill's and Daniel Sullivan’s lines to the
land of the sd. Graves formerly sold to Capt. Thos. Streshley, thence join-
ing with that land to the tand of Mrs, Hannah Upshaw, to the sd. James
Reynalds's line, thence along sd. Reynolds's line to the beginning” The
witnesses were:  Wm, Reynolds, Nicholas Pamplin, Francis Lafon, Dinah
x Coleman, Elizabeth, wife of Thos.® Graves relinquished her dower rights,
and later gave a power of attorney to Nicholas Pamplin (D. B. 22, p. 14},
whose wile Sarah was a sister of Col. Roane.

IZlizabeth Graves was the daughter of John and Mary Moody (W. B.
6, p. 157), as Mrs. Sweeny’s careful searches in Essex Records revealed.
John Moody was in Fssex as early as 1692, when he bought 100 a. from
Geo. Ward; threc years later with the consent of his wife Mary, he sold
this {and to Thos. Hucklescott {Essex 1692-95 pp. 371b-372}. In 1702
(T, & W. 10, p. 98) he and Wm. Gordon purchased of Joseph Gray 200
a. between the main swamp of Piscataway and Hoskins Creek. 1In the
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1704 Quit Rent Roll he is listed as owning 150 a. In his will which is
witnessed by Jeremialt Upshaw and John Allen, he mentions sons George
wha is to be exor., granddaughter Matthew (sic) Corkin, dau. Elizabeth
Graves, dau, Mary Paget, and son Edward. Wm. Reynolds and Jeremiah
Upshaw went on George Moudy's exor's, bond, and John and Thos, Gate-
wood and Nicholas Pamplin returned the inventory and appraisement of
the estate (W. 13, 6, p. 179.}

Elizaheth Moody was born about 1690 and married Thos3 Graves
about 1708 or 'I6. She seems to have predeceased her husband since
she is not mentioned in the scttlement of his estate. Cur last men-
tion of her suggests an expected demise: O. B, 11, p. 72, Jan. 17, 1738/9.
“Thosd Graves being presented by the grand jury for not frequenting his
parish Church, and the sd. Thes.3 appearing and making it to appear to
the court that his wife had been so very sick since last March that he
could not leave her, it is ordered the presentment be dismissed.”

Thos.3 Graves died about 1743, for on Feb. 15, 1742/3 (W. B. 6, p.
418), John* Graves appeared in court and obtained administration of the
estate of Thos.? Graves decd, with Thos. Coleman as his security. A
menth later (W. B. 6, p. 425), Wm. Upshaw, John Garnett and Wm,
Reynolds returned the inventory and appraisement, and two years later
(W. B. 7, n. 344), the final seitlement of the estate took place. In this
account, Thomas Coleman pays the estate 720 1bs, tobacco for rent, show-
ing that Thos3 Graves had owned other land besides the 240 a, he had
sald the Streshleys.

From the will of Richard,3 we know that Thomas?® had sons Richardt
and Francis4 There seem no documents in Essex that prove other chil-
dren, but from the fact that John* Graves qualifies as administrator we
consider him the oldest son.. He was not a son of either Francis® or
Richard,® as their wills have evidenced, and his birth is too early for him
to have been a grandson; by elimination, therefore, he was son of Thomas,*
and 2l known facts confirm the asscrtion,

About 1922 the late Gen. john Card Graves, of Buffalo, N. Y, gave
the writer dates of birth and marriage 'of Johnt Graves and his wife,
Susanna Dicken, with names and dates of birth of their children. This
data had been secured for him by the late Mr, R, A. Brock about 1894
and its source was not piven. Since, however, these dates have been
corroborated by different branches of the family, it is assumed they are
from Joln? Graves’s own Bible and they will be used in this article.

According to this, Johnt Graves, b. in St, George's Par., Spotsylvania
Co., Dec. 10, 1712, d, Mar, 30, 1747, married on Nov. 22 1732, Susanna
Dicken, b. June 14, 1714. A patent error is seen in speaking of St. George's
Par. some nine years before its creation, but most likely the meaning of
the statement is that he was born in St. Ann’s from which 5t. Mary’s
was formed, St. Mary's including that part of Essex which later lay in
Spotsylvania and became 5St. George's Parish,

Johnt Graves, as we have said, was born in 1712, and named most likely
for his grandfather, John Moody. TIn Tissex O, B. 11, May 15, 1739, we
find bim sued for debt by Wm, Wills and losing the case. Tn 1742, he wit-
nessed a deed from DPhilip Sanders, probably his cousin, to Mary Curtis
{Crozier's Spots. Rec., p. 159), On Jan. 27, 174374, he purchased from
Nicholas Randelph and Margaret hiz wife for 25£ current money 170 a.
beginning at a hickory on the cast side of Mine Road upon Wryatt's line
thence running down the fine to a red oak, white oak and hickory stand-
ing, etc,, upon John Sartin's land, thence to a line old Musick macde, this
170 a. being part of a larger tract patented by sd. Musick and by him con-
veved to sd. Randolph (Spots. D. B. “D p. 111). “Oud Musick™ is
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likely the George Musick who died in Spatsylvania Co. 1754 (Crozier's
Spots. Rec, p. 13}, and who was living in King Wm. 1719 (King Wm,
Rec., Book 2, p. 85), at which time he patented lund adjoining Haery
Beverley (5. 1. O. Book 10, p. 430, This is the only purchase of land
by Johnt Grayes recorded in Spotsylyvania, but the amount of Tand he-
queathed in his will shows that either other purchases were unrecorded or
antedated the formation of the county,

In Spots, O, B. 1738-49, p. 418, June 2, 1747, the will of Jolu#
Graves, decd., was exhibited by Susanna Graves, one of the exors. named
therein; Joseph Peterson and John Wigglesworth refused the executorship,
which thus came to Susanna. An abstract of the will (Spots. Rec. W.
B. A, p. 445), dated Mar. 30, 1747, probated June 2, 1747, is as follows:
1o my wife Susanna for her lifetime 140 a. of land I had of Nicholas Ran-
dolph, and then to fall to my son Edward;% to my son ThosF 140 a, of
land adjoining his brother Edward;® to daughter Rebecca® 140 a. adjoin-
ing her brother Thos. ;% to son Isaac® 140 a. adjoining his sister Rebecca;’
to son John® 140 a. adjoining his brother Isaac;® to daughter Jemimas
140 a. adjoining her Dbrother John® Estate not to be appraised but wife
to have use of it, giving the children their parts as they came of age, “in
case any of my children should die without heirs, his or her part to be
egually divided among the rest.” Wife, Thos. Gahagon, Joseph Peterson
and John Wiggleswarth to be exors, Witnesses: Joseph Holladay, Benj.
Hollaclay, Benj. Lewis, Wm, Weblh,  Some comment on these witnesses and
exors is m order, Thos, Gahagan is probably the person of that name
who i1 Orange Co. Court in 1747 proved his importation. e is not men-
tioned when the will is offered for probate. Joln Wigglesworth on April
4, 1738, stated that he had come from Great Britain 17 years before . (Spots.
O. B. 1738-49, n. 4). He died intestate in 1752 (Spots. O. B, 1749-55, p.
182) and an Aug. 4, 1752, Wm. Wigglesworth his son chose Mary Wiggles-
worth, the widow, as his guardian, and she was appointed guardian to her
children, Mary, Lsther, Saral, & John Wigglesworth, with John TTolla-
day and Ilenry T.ewis as her securities (Spots. Q. B, 1749-55, p. 194),
Joseph Peterson, the other exor, probably came from ¥ssex, as there was
a Peterson family there in 1678, ITe was son-in-law of Ann Pollard
{Crozier's Spots. Rec, p. 13) and died 1766, but his will reveals no Graves
connection (Crozier's Spots. Rec, p. 23)

The parentage of Susanna Idicken is not known, but she was likely a
descendant of "Mr. Christoplier Dicken,” who in 1678 patented land in
Kingston Par., Gloucester, adjoining his plantation (S. L. O. Book 6, p.

"639). The Christoplier Dicken who became guardian for her oldest son

Thos5 Graves was probably her brother. He married Sarah, daughter of
Thos. Pulliam, and died in Culpeper 1778, where his will is of record. It
seems probable that the name of Susanna’s father was Isaac Dicken. Tn
Spots. O. B, 1755-65, p. 3, May 7, 1775, is the following: “On motion
of Henry Chiles who intermarried with Susanna, widow of Johu! Graves,
decdd,, John Waller, Thos. Wyatt and Jos. ITolladay are ordered to ap-
praise the estale and set aparct the estate devised Thos.® (Graves by his
father’'s wilk” Henry Chiles, son of John Chiles, bouglht land in 1724
from his grandfather Henry Webber and settled in Spotsylvania Co.
He married () Merey - _. She very likely was a daughter
by the first marriage of James WebDh {d. 1716), of Essex. The writer
15 indebted to Mr. W. MaclF, Jones of Richmond for ihis suggestion.
Wm, Webb (d. 1783} formerly of Essex and undoubtedly a kinsman
of Jas. Webb is frequently associated with ITenry Chiles as is Thos.
Wyatt. Thos. Wyatt married Sukey, daughter of John Edmondson
and Mary Johnson (Essex D. B. 24, p. 247}, brather of Thos Edmondson
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who marsied Constance Webh (Essex D. & W. 17, p. 323). Henry Chiles
died 1763 (Crozier’s Spots. Rec., p. 21). His wife, Susanna, and a large
mumber of children survived him. Susannah died testate in Culpeper Co.
1784. )

Johnt and Susama  (Dicken) Graves had six children as follows:
{1y Thosb b, Nov. 14, 1733, d. 1810, m. Sarah Lelaney; (2) Johnb b,
Dec. 19, 1737, d. Dec, 8, 1825, m. Nov, 30, 1760, Ann dan, of .\Vm. an‘d
Sarah Rice of Culpeper; (3) Rebecea® b, Sept. 4, 1735, By their gatllcgs
will each child was to receive 140 a., but in case of a child’s dying, its
part was to be equally divided among the survivors. In 1764 (Croz}::rs
Spots. Rec., p. 234), James Chiles and Jemima® his wife seli 168 a. “de-
vised to the sd. Jemima by her father Johni Graves.” Since we can trace
all the other children, Rebecca’ must have died young, and the survivors
inherited her land. (4) Isaac® b. Sept. 2, 1741, d. 1818, m. (1) Mildred
McWilliams, (2) Elizabeth Cowherd, (3) Jemima Holliday; {5) Jemima®
b. Mar. 21, 1743/4, m. by 1764 James Chiles, son of her stepfather, Hen_ry
Chiles; (6) Edward® b. Aug. 19, 1746, d. 1832, m, about 1769 Sarah, sis-
ter of Ann Rice whom his brother }ohn5 married.

1. We shall now discuss these children in detail. Thos,3 oldest son,
m. Sarah Delaney, dau. of John Delaney and Frances Stanton, dau of Thos.
and Sarah Stanton. The will of Thos. Stanton, dated Oct. 2, 1741 (Orange
Rec. W. I3, 1, p. 177) mentions dau. Frances Delaney, and the will of John
Delancy, dated April 28, 1800 (Madison Rec. W. B. 1, p. 400} mentions
dau. Sarah Graves. The following children are named in the will of Thosd
Graves, dated April 28, 1809, probated Mar. 22, 1810 (Madison Rec. W.
B. 2, p. 240):

1. Susannah® Graves b. 1758, given as the oldest child, m. Aug. 23,
1806, in Madison Co, Capt. Angus Rucker (1752-1836), Issue, if any,
untraced.

2. Jolm® Graves (1760-1828) . in Culpeper Co. Dee. 23, 1788, Lliza-
heth [dding, dan. of Joseph ddins, Jr., amd Sarah Blakey.  His will dated
May 25, 1828, proved June 26, 1828 (Madison Rec. W, B. 5, p. 173} men-
tions 8 children, as follows: 1. Simeon? m. 1813 Maria 5. Yancey, qf
Rockingham Co., “dan. of a respectable Revolutionary officer,”  She di-
vorced him in 1827, and the account of the affair (Chancery Court Rec,
Fredericksburg, File 111) pictures Simeon aliernately a devil and an
ange! as her friends and then his friends gave testimony., Simeon was a
merchant in Stanardsville, There were 6 children by this marriage, one
of them “Frances dau. of Maria L. Graves” with Layton G. Graves as
security, m. in QOrange Co. Aug. 1, 1835, Jas, Taylor. 2 St. Clair7 b,
April 7, 1793, d. unmarried. 3. JaneT (1794-1875) m. Sept. 10, 1815, Adam
Wilhoit. 4. Paschal? (1796-1860) m. Aug. 25, 1830, Elizabeth W.7 dau.
of Jacoh® Graves, 5. Sarah? m. Sept. 28, 1809, as his first wife, Wn1,
Dulaney. 6. Abraham? (d. 1839) said to have m. a Biedler, his will (Madi-
son Ree. W. B. 7, p. 14) mentions “all my childeen.” 7. Ann7 m, (1) in
Madison Co, Nov. 15, 1813, Roht. Beasley, (2) in Orange Co., Sept. 23,
1822, James P. Sims. 8, Judith? m. in Madison Co.,, Oct. 28, 1816, John
Snyder,

3, Thos$ Graves, Jr. (1762-1833) m. Feb, 5, 1791, in Orange Co,
Mourning, dau, of Thos. Burruss (1722-1788) and Frances his wife, dau.
of Roger and Sarah {Quarles) Tandy. (For Tandy, see Tyler's Mag.
Vol. 14.) In his will {Madison Rec. W, B, 6, p. 121), Thos.® Graves, Jr.
mentions the following children and their heirs: 1. Frances” m. in Madison
Co., Oct. 22, 1812, Reuben C. Sims; 2. Sarah? m. in Madison Co, Oct.
22, 1812, Wm. Early; 3. Martha? m. in Madison Co. Dec. 18, 1813, Willis
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ol B: Abt 1509 .
: Of, Hoston,
Y1 Northumberiand,
England . * @
D: 3 Aug 1570
P( = ~ M: Abt 1530
» d'
O, Horten, Of, , Nerthumberfan
[ 5] Morthumbertand, England |
1 Thomas GRAY O: Bef 11 1562 Jul -
B: 1583
, » » England
D: 1653 \ 1=
.. Surry, Va s L
4 = Northumbertand, Engla
Margaret Anis ]
B 1597 i
, Of Sumry, Virginta %li b A2
< Roger LESTRANGE
B: At 1526
6] ...England
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13,
3] ..,England |
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1 |[gdward GREY
B: Abt 1477
.. England
D: 6 Dec 1533 -
M: Abt 1528
Of, |, Yorkshira, England

Anne GOWER |

frneconen 7
©f, Standby, Yorkshire,
England
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Ralph GREY.
B: 14327
Of, Chillingham,

WNorthurnberiand, England

D: 15 Jul 1454
, Doncastar, Yorkshire,
England

g909

Jacguetta

B: Abt 1436
<Qf, Chillingham,
Northumberiand,
England>

[ 26 Sep 1469
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Ralph GREY
B: 9 Sep 1406
Of, Heaton, Warke, &
Chitlingham,
Northumberiand,
England
D: 17 Mar 1443
s ¢ France
;1 Jul 1435
Ravensworth, Yorkshire,
England

g

|

Elizabeth FITZHUGH

B: Akt 1410
Of, Ravensworth, York,
England

D: At 1445

o

g b”g«‘}f:z/

¢t

o

Thomas GREY -~

B: 30 Nov 1384
Castla, Alhwick,
Northumberiand,
England [

D: 3 Aug 1415 1
MNorth Gate,
Southampton,
Hampshire, England

i)

w

L2

Alice De NEVILLE ¢/ /
8: Abt 1384
Of, Raby, Durham,
England

[ |D: 11.Jan 1424/1425

Henry FITZHUGH f

B: 1358 gjf
Of, Ravensworth,
Yorkshire, Englang

, Ravensworth,
Yorkshire, England

M: Bef 1389
Ravensworth, Yorkshire,

L_Englan

=

Elizabeth GREY

B: Abt 1365 @13
Ravensworth,
Ravensworth, Yorkshirs,
England

O: Bef 14 1427 Dec
Ratherfield, Oxfordshire,
England
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Thomas GREY
B: 135¢
Of, Heton,
Northumberiand, England
D: 26 Nov 1400
M: Abt 1381

Thomas GREY
B: 30 Nov 13584
Castle, Alnwick,
Northumbertand, England
D; 3 Aug 1415
North Gate,
Southampton,
Hampshire, Engiand =
M: Abt 1401

Alice De NEVILLE
B: Abt 1384
Of, Raby, Durham,
England
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Thomas GREY
B: Abt 1328 .
Of, Heton, -
Northumbertand,
England
D: Bef 22 1368 Oct
M: 1353
Heton, , . England

o

Thomas GREY

B: Alt 1297
Of Heton, Islandshire;
Neithumberiand,
England

Joan De (MOWBRAY)
B: Abt 1363
Of. Axholme,
Lincolnshire, England
D: Aft 30 1402 Nov

Margaret De PRESSENE
B: Atx 1332
Of, Preston,
Northumberiand, England

D: Bef 12 1343/1344 Mar
M: Abt 1327
Agnes De BEYLE gn}
B: Abt 1301 1
Of, Heton, -
Neorthumberiand, England

John De MOWBRAY

B: 25 Jun 1340
Epworth, Isle Of
Axholme, Lincoinshire,
England

D: 1388
Constantinople,
Constartineple, Turkey

M: 25 Mar (disp) 1349

Of, . . England

|~

Abbey, Croxton,
Leicestershire, England
D: Bef 1368

—4
William PRESSENE

B: Abt 1303 -
Of, Praston, .
Morthumberiand, England

g1

John De MOWBRAY
8: 29 Nov 1310

Hovingham, Yorkshire, 13
N BN

Bedford, Bedford,
England
M: Abt 1339

Joan PLANTAGENET
B: Abt 1310

. » Norfolk, Engfand
D: 7 Jut 1349

=21D: 24 Mar 1398/1389

John De SEGRAVE
B: 1314/1315
, . Norfolk, England
Cx 1 Apr 1353
Spm
M: 133711338
Brathenton, , Yorkshire,

= 34922,

v |
Margarst PLANTAGENET
B: Abt 1322
Of. . Norfolk, England
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Thomas GREY
B: At 1287
Of Heton, Islandshirea,
Northumberiand, England
O Bef 12 1343/1344 Mar
M At 1327

Agnes De BEYLE

B: Abt 1301
Of, Heton,
Northumbertand, England

Pedigree Chart
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Thomas De (Gray} GREY
B; At 1268

Of, Heton,

Northumberland, England
O 1310

, . Forfarshire, Scotland

[w

Mrs-Thomas GREY

B: Abt 1270
Of, Heton,
Northurnberiand, England

John GREY
B: Abt 1225
Of, , , Scottand

Page 1 ot 2

=

Hugh De GREY
B: Abt 1203
Of, Chillingham,

Noithumbetiand, England

¥

Jon

Mrs-John GREY
B: Abt 1229
Qf, . , Scotland

Mrs-Hugh GREY
B: Aht 1207

Of, Chillingham,

Northumberland, Englad n*

N
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Of, Thurrock, Essex,
4 England
—{M: Abt 1175 |
Of, Thurrock, Essex,
l '? . ’}/ England
s @d@
9
Henry De GREY
B: At 1161
Of, Codner, Derbyshire,
2 England
[ |D: 1218 [ |
M: Abt 1199
Of, Thurrock, Essex,
England 10
—
< 1 \ Mrs-Richard De GREY
L@ B: Abt 1152
Of, Thurrock, Essex,
L2] Engiand
1 [Hugh De GREY g —
B: Abt 1203
Of, Chillingham,
Northumberiand, England 11
Mrs-Hugh GREY Hugo BARDOLF
B: Akt 1207 ,,}%;7 B: At 1125 -
Of, Chillingham, 4 12| Great Cartton, Lincoin, /17
Northumberiand, England ,I:lugh BARDOLF Englancl
B: Abt 1156
Of, Thurrock, Essex, o
s| England l/
—M: Abt 1180 2 ;
Of, Thurrock, Essex, ; :
England Mrs-Hugo BARDOLF
B: Abt 1129
% 13| Of Great Carleton,
Lincolnshire, England H*
Isok de) BARDOLF
B: abt 1168
Of, Hoo, Kent, England

ix

D: Bef 18 1246 Jun

w7
isohel AQUILLION |
B: Akt 1155 |

Cf, Thurrock, Essex,
England

I"d
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Roger GREY

B: Abt 1475
Of, Horton,
Nerthumberland, Englz

~D: 6 Jan 1542

M: Abt 1489
Of, Templehurst,

Yorkshire, England

~k

Thomas GREY -

B: Aht 1509
Of, Horton,

D: S Aug 1570
M: Abt 1530
Of, , Northumberland,
England

/
Northumbertand, England

Derothy OGLE

B: 1541
Of Eglingham,
Northumberland, England
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Isabel DARCY
B: Abt 1468

Of, Templehurst,
Yorkshire, England

~b 401

- - \/{/‘9 Thomas GREY
Lﬁ,“k B85 Abt 1423
Of, Horton, *
Northumbertand, Engtand
Thomas GREY ‘ )
B: Abt 1455 D: Aft May 1493
Of, Hottorn,
_4  Northumbernand, England ]l
Mrs-Thomas GREY
B8: Abt 1427
L8] of. Horton,
Nerthumberland, England [mjp

¢4

Miss FENWICK
B: Alt 1458

{on

Of, Wallington, _ England | |

sd

William DARCY

B: 1450
Of, Templenawsom,
Yofishire, England

D 30 May 1483

M: 23 Jan 1465
Liconse, Famelay,

|

Richard DARCY
B: 1425

Of, Ternplenewsam,
Yorkshire, England
D: Bef1 1458 Jun
M: Akt 1450
Of, Upsall, Yorkshire,
England

Euphermia (Elizabeth)
LANGTON
B: Alt 1443
o Fﬂ'l'hy‘ Yokahim_
England

[~

gD

Eleanor SCROPE
8: Akt 1428
©Of, Upsall, Yorkshire,
England
D: 1471

John (Thomas) LANGTON
B: Att 1410
Of, Famley, Yorkshire,
England
D: 25 Feb 1458
Parish Church, Near
Leeds, Yorkshire,
England
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